From: Amundsen, James (DOT)

To: Post, Christopher L (DOT)
Cc: Bowland, Luke S (DOT); Norkoli, Ryan N (DOT); Miyashiro, Eric L (DOT); Junge, Wolfgang E (DOT); Smith,

Sharon L (DOT); Eerguson, Cynthia (DOT); Adler, Clint J (DOT); Post. Christopher L (DOT); Huber, Christina A
(DOT); Bentz, Chris L (DOT); Mckee, Edith J (DOT); Jackson, Kevin L (DOT); Thomas, Scott E (DOT); Baski,
Sean M (DQOT); Holland, Sean L (DOT)

Subject: RE: Use of Standard Drawings on Current Projects
Date: Wednesday, October 31, 2018 9:28:22 AM
Attachments: AELS Board Letter.pdf

CE Directive on Standard Drawings.pdf

Chris, et al,

Based on the recent letter from the State AELS Board, there is significant concern about how Alaska
DOT&PF has been using Statewide Standard Drawings on individual projects (see attached).

To insure compliance with the AELS Board Letter, until we receive specific direction otherwise from
the Chief Engineer, my direction to all Highway Design Group Project Managers and Project
Engineers of Record for a project is that they should generate their own project specific details and
NOT use any of the existing stamped Statewide or Central Region Standard Drawings for any projects
that are not yet certified for construction.

It is perfectly acceptable for the Engineer of Record to start with the standard details (including using
the AutoCAD drawings you have available) from those Statewide Standard Drawings to come up with
the project specific details for their project. But the Engineer of Record is responsible for providing
the direct professional knowledge and direct supervisory control of that preparation and verification
of applicability before they seal the project detail sheets in their plan set.

If the Engineer of Record doesn’t have the required knowledge and education to qualify them to seal
the detail needed. The Engineer of Record can work with the Project Manager to have someone
within the DOT&PF with the required qualifications prepare and seal the specific detail sheet for
their project. Or hire a consultant with the necessary expertise to develop and seal the detail for use
on their project.

For any projects that were certified for construction and include one of the Standard Details that the
Chief Engineer has rescinded, the process to advertising will need to hold while a project specific
detail can be prepared and substituted, possibly by addendum if it has already advertised. But we
should not be opening a bid for a project that includes a rescinded Standard Drawing per the
8/15/2018 Directive.

Please post this direction to Pinnacle and share with all of the in house and consultant Engineers of
Record working on our projects.

The 2019 SSHC update and whether to include the AASHTOWare numbers is still being resolved with
D&ES but | don’t expect the 2019 edition to be released with the AASHTOWare updated until mid-
2019. All projects expected to advertise for summer of 2019 construction should continue using the
2017 SSHC with the standard modifications and AASHTOWare number cross walks.
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September 11, 2018

State of Alaska

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities
Design & Engineering Services

PO Box 112500

Juneau, AK 99811-2500

Attn: Kenneth J. Fisher, PE Division Director & Chief Engineer

Mr. Fisher:

Thank you for coming to our August 2018 meeting to discuss the stamping of standard detail drawings by
the Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT&PF). The Board agrees with the last line of
the letter by Jeffrey P. Stark of the Department of Law that DOT&PF may use standard details. The Board
does not agree with the contention that they can be signed as final drawings, particularly within
DOT&PF’s current framework for managing standard details.

Standard details are intended to be used in multiple projects with little or no change, and the
appropriateness of their inclusion into a particular project is the responsibility of the engineer of record
for that project. It is the responsibility of the registrant that initially designed the detail to include
limitations of the detail’s application, however, if that registrant is not directly involved with a particular
project, sealing the drawing is in violation of 12 AAC 36.185 (a)(3), (4) and (7) which state:

(3) seal only final drawings, surveys, reports, and required construction documents for which the
registrant is qualified to seal and for which the registrant claims responsibility;

(4) not knowingly allow the use of his or her seal by another person on a document that the
registrant has neither prepared nor reviewed personally;

(7) not sign or seal drawings, documents, or other professional work for which the
registrant does not have direct professional knowledge and direct supervisory control.

During discussions at the past several AELS meetings, itis the Board’s understanding that registrants
designing standard details for DOT&PF typically do not have direct professional knowledge of the
particular project in which their detail is being incorporated. The Board maintains that DOT&PF’s current
practice of having the standard detail stamped by the registrant, forces the registrant to take
responsibility for the detail’s application in future
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projects of which he or she has no knowledge. It is the responsibility of the engineer of record for a
particular project to ensure the detail is appropriate for the project. If the detail’s use doesn’t perfectly
match the conditions placed on that detail, it is the engineer of record’s responsibility to revise the
detail to meet the conditions. Additionally, as these details are currently sealed, , when the engineer of
record for a project “reseals” the drawing, he or she takes responsibility for that detail and its use on
the project, whether there is a stamp on that detail, or not.

Even if we were to accept that these drawings are final, the drawing with a stamp would only be good
until a new code is issued. At that time somebody, whether the original engineer or a new one, would
have to review the detail and verify that it still meets code. They should make changes, if necessary, and
put a new stamp on the detail and date it (per 12 AAC 36.185 (d)), so that everyone knows at what time
it was approved. The reviewer, if not the original engineer, cannot extend the life of the detail on
behalf of the previous engineer by filling in a line in a revision block. If the reviewer is the original
engineer, they have to put a new date on the stamp whenever they do such a review.-A stamp-originally
put on a detail in 1982 cannot still be valid in 2018, unless no new codes have been issued in the
interim.

We have also heard that there are concerns with a number of the details and their use is problematic to
the engineers who are being given these details. The engineers have to create their own details
because of code violations in the existing details. They can do this because they have the expertise to
identify shortcomings in or variations from the standard detail. They understand that their license is at
risk, if they specify a detail that is not adequate for the purpose.

Finally, to verify the applicability of a detail and put a stamp on it, the engineer must have a valid
license. Issuing a drawing stamped by an engineer whose license has been retired or has lapsed is
practicing engineering without a license. That is not acceptable.

You had requested an Attorney General’s opinion on this issue. Robert Auth, the Department of Law
attorney who works with the Board of Architects, Engineers, and Land Surveyors, has reviewed this

letter and agrees with the Board'’s interpretation of the Statutes and Regulations.

The Board recommends DOT&PF remove stamps from standard details and establish a process
for reviewing standard details on a regular basis to ensure they are compliant with codes.

Respectfully,

BOARD OF ARCHITECTS, ENGINEERS, AND LAND SURVEYORS

A

Colin Maynard, PE, SE, F.NSPE
Chair

cc: Robert Auth, Department of Law






Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

Statewide Design & Engineering Services Division
Phone: 907-465-2960
Fax: 907-465-3124

TRANSMITTAL

TO: Distribution DATE: August 15,2018

FROM: Kenneth J. Fis
Chief Engine

SUBJECT: Chief Engineer’s Directive:
Standard Drawing Rescission

The Chief Engineer’s Directive of August 6, 2018 is rescinded and replaced with this directive.

The following list of Standard Drawings are rescinded effective immediately. These are all
NCHRP-350 guardrail drawings that have been replaced by MASH compliant Standard
Drawings.

G-00.03 G-04.12W G-13.00 G-27.11
G-04.128 G-10.01 G-25.21W G-28.00

The list of Standard Drawings below will be rescinded effective October 15, 2018. Do not use
on projects advertised after this date.

B-04.00 M-05.00 S-22.00 T-54.00
B-05.00 R-00.00 S-23.00 T-55.00
C-03.10 R-01.01 S-41.02 T-56.00
D-35.00 R-03.00 T-52.20 T-57.01
L-30.10 R-08.00 T-53.00

Any questions regarding this directive should be directed to Lars Gregovich, P.E.,
Preconstruction Standards Engineer at lars.gregovich@alaska.gov or 465-6968.

Distribution:

Jake Allen, P.E., Construction Engineer, Northern Region

Jim Amundsen, P.E., Highway Design Group Chief, Central Region

Pat Carroll, P.E., Preconstruction Engineer, Southcoast Region

Mike Chambers, Publication Specialist, Statewide

Jeff Jeffers, P.E., Standard Specifications Engineer, Statewide

Tenor Galambush, P.E., Area Engineer & Standards, FHWA Alaska Division

“Keep Alaska Moving through service and infrastructure.”





Chris Goins, P.E., Design Group Chief, Southcoast Region

Jim Green, P.E., Construction Standards Engineer, D&ES, Statewide

Lars Gregovich, P.E., Preconstruction Standards, D&CS, Statewide
Wolfgang Junge, P.E., Preconstruction Engineer, Central Region

Jeff Jenkins, Contracts Officer, Southcoast Region

Simons Latunde-Addey, P.E., Engineering and Operations Team Leader, FHWA
Mark Neidhold, P.E., Chief of Design & Construction Standards, Statewide
Rich Pratt, P.E., Chief Bridge Engineer, Statewide

Hank Rettinger, Area Engincer, FHWA Alaska Division

Sarah Schacher, P.E., Preconstruction Engineer, Northern Region

Sharon Smith, P.E., Contracts Engineer, Central Region

Joel St. Aubin, P.E., Construction Engineer, Central Region

Barb Tanner, P.E., Contracts Engineer, Northern Region

Matt Walker, P.E., State Traffic and Safety Engineer, D&ES, Statewide
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“Keep Alaska Moving through service and infrastructure.”






If you have questions or to request an exception for a specific project or standard drawing, please
come see me.

Respectfully,

James E. Amundsen, P.E.
Chief, Hwy Design Group
Alaska DOT&PF, CR
907-269-0566

From: Post, Christopher L (DOT)

Sent: Tuesday, October 23, 2018 8:49 AM

To: Amundsen, James (DOT)

Cc: Bowland, Luke S (DOT); Junge, Wolfgang E (DOT); Ferguson, Cynthia (DOT)
Subject: Use of Standard Drawings on Current Projects

Hi Jim —

Could you please provide me with a short blurb on how you’d like us to move forward on the use of
Standard Drawings within the Region?

I’d like to push this out through one of my standards update emails. Especially since it sounds like
we’ll be wanting to incorporate any non-sealed drawings (or is it all standard drawings at this point?)
into our plan sets which will add additional time and money to every project. I'll also be posting all
of the Standard Drawing AutoCAD drawing files on the network and ftp site for folks to use.

Another item that dawned on me about the 2019 SSHC update. If the AASHTOWare numbers don’t
get incorporated into this edition, we’d now have to wait another two years before they’d actually
get included (2021). This just reinforces that we should start work now on this and if it takes until
2020 so be it. We could also engage the regions for a more substantial update instead of just
including the Statewide Mods currently proposed.

Thanks,

Chris Post, P.E.

Highway Design — Project Manager

State of Alaska — DOT&PF — Central Region

Phone: (907) 269-0585 |E-mail: chris.post@alaska.gov
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